/——*f’—‘
Huntingdonshire

DISTRICT COUNCIL

A Special Meeting of the CABINET will be held as a REMOTE
MEETING VIA ZOOM on TUESDAY, 18 AUGUST 2020 at 6:00 PM
and you are requested to attend for the transaction of the following
business:-

AGENDA
APOLOGIES
MEMBERS' INTERESTS

To receive from Members declarations as to disclosable pecuniary and other
interests in relation to any Agenda item.

Contact Officer: Democratic Services - (01480) 388169
COMMUNITY INFRASTRUCTURE LEVY SPEND - KIMBOLTON (Pages 3 - 10)

To receive a report from the Service Manager (Growth) on Community
Infrastructure Levy spend in Kimbolton.

Executive Councillor: J Neish.
Contact Officer: C Kerr - (01480) 388430

7 day of August 2020
, ﬁ.usuu Soncx g

Head of Paid Service
Disclosable Pecuniary Interests and Non-Statutory Disclosable Interests

Further information on Disclosable Pecuniary Interests and Non - Statutory
Disclosable Interests is available in the Council’'s Constitution

Filming, Photography and Recording at Council Meetings

The District Council permits filming, recording and the taking of photographs at its
meetings that are open to the public. It also welcomes the use of social networking
and micro-blogging websites (such as Twitter and Facebook) to communicate with
people about what is happening at meetings.

Arrangements for these activities should operate in accordance with guidelines
agreed by the Council.


https://www.huntingdonshire.gov.uk/media/3744/constitution.pdf
https://www.huntingdonshire.gov.uk/media/3744/constitution.pdf
https://www.huntingdonshire.gov.uk/media/1365/filming-photography-and-recording-at-council-meetings.pdf

Please contact Mrs Habbiba Peacey, Democratic Services Officer, Tel No:
01480 388169 / e-mail: Habbiba.Peacey@huntingdonshire.gov.uk if you have
a general query on any Agenda lItem, wish to tender your apologies for
absence from the meeting, or would like information on any decision taken
by the Committee/Panel.

Specific enquiries with regard to items on the Agenda should be directed towards
the Contact Officer.

Agenda and enclosures can be viewed on the District Council’s website.



http://applications.huntingdonshire.gov.uk/moderngov/mgListCommittees.aspx?bcr=1

Agenda ltem 2

Public
Key Decision - Yes

HUNTINGDONSHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL

Title/Subject Matter:  CIL spend - Kimbolton

Meeting/Date: Special Cabinet — 18th August 2020
Executive Portfolio: Executive Councillor for Strategic Planning
Report by: Service Manager - Growth

Ward affected: Kimbolton

Executive Summary:

The Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) is a planning charge, introduced by
the Planning Act 2008 as a tool for local authorities in England and Wales to
help deliver infrastructure to support the development of the area. It came into
force on 6 April 2010 through the Community Infrastructure Levy Regulations
2010. Huntingdonshire District Council became a CIL charging authority in May
2012.

Local authorities must spend the levy on infrastructure needed to support the
development of their area. This helps to deliver across a number of the
Council’'s Corporate Plan priorities for 2018 — 2022 but specifically:

e Support development of infrastructure to enable growth
e Improve the supply of new and affordable housing, jobs and community
facilities to meet current and future need

Kimbolton Parish Council recognise there is an existing issue for residents
crossing the B645, particularly for those with young children, the elderly and
disabled.

Kimbolton Parish Council have funded and developed detailed plans with
Cambridgeshire County Council (CCC) for a deliverable scheme, including
costs, timescales for implementation and details of match funding.
Recommendation:

The Cabinet is recommended to support CIL funding of £20,000 as co-funding
toward the construction of a new pedestrian crossing in Kimbolton.

Page 3 of 10




11

2.1

2.2

2.3

2.4

PURPOSE OF THE REPORT

To consider a payment of £20,000 from CIL toward the provision of a
new pedestrian crossing of the B645 in Kimbolton.

BACKGROUND

The settlement of Kimbolton comprises the historic centre of the
settlement to the south of Thrapston Road (B645) with a more recent
addition, known as New Town lying to the north of the B645. While
Kimbolton has a private school within its historic core, the public school
to serve the settlement and surrounding catchment lies in the New Town
area of the settlement. Kimbolton Medical Centre also lies in the New
Town area. The B645 is a busy route being the prime route from St.
Neots to Northamptonshire.

Kimbolton Parish Council (KPC) recognise that there are no formal
crossing points on the B645 to access services identified in paragraph
2.1 or for more immediate residents to access to the main food shop
(Budgens) at Robinson’s garage. This presents a significant challenge for
parents walking children to school and vulnerable users of the medical
centre. For that reason KPC have developed a deliverable crossing
solution in conjunction with Cambridgeshire County Council. Following
local consultation with residents the proposal is for a raised zebra
crossing between Castle Gardens and Tollfield.

The scheme will include the following considerations

e There is a good visibility at the crossing point for both approaching
traffic and pedestrian

e High skid resistance surface to be provided at the carriageway
approaches to the pedestrian crossing

e EXxisting street lighting to be reviewed and improved if deemed
necessary to ensure the proposed pedestrian crossing facility is
illuminated at all times esp. in the hours of darkness.

e EXxisting bus stops to be relocated if required.

e Footway extension up to 1.8 m width to be provided

e Surface water Drainage

The intention is to commence delivery of a new crossing upon
confirmation of funding from all parties. Appendix 1 comprises project
plans of the proposed crossing. Table 1 below sets out the position on
funding commitments

Table 1:
Funding Commitments Total Cost - £48, 000
KPC (£4,000)
Cambridgeshire Community | (£24,000)
Fund
CIL Ask £20, 000

Page 4 of 10




3.1

3.2

4.1

5.1

5.2

6.1

7.1

ANALYSIS

The Huntingdonshire Local Plan 2036 (HLP2036) recognises Kimbolton
as a Key Service Centre with 3 allocations to deliver approximately 85
homes and 1.3ha of commercial land. The provision of a formal crossing
will provide a safe crossing for children walking to school, encourage
active travel to access services in New Town and allow residents to
safely access the food store at Robinson’s Garage, north of the B645.

The levy is intended to focus on the provision of new infrastructure and
Table 1 sets out the funding position and provides details on the level of
match funding that the KPC have actively sought to enable the delivery of
a pedestrian crossing.

RISKS

The key impact from not considering the CIL spend will be the potential
for certain infrastructure projects not being delivered and match funding
lost and a much needed crossing will not be delivered. The scale of
growth identified for Kimbolton does not necessitate a crossing to be
secured through developer contributions, and therefore relies on a range
of alternative funding mechanisms.

TIMETABLE FOR IMPLEMENTATION

KPC confirm their intention to commence delivery a new crossing upon
confirmation of co-funding from all parties.

KPC will be notified of the outcome of the Cabinet’s decision and next
steps as appropriate.

LINK TO THE CORPORATE PLAN, STRATEGIC PRIORITIES AND/OR
CORPORATE OBJECTIVES

This helps to deliver across a number of the Council’s priorities for 2018 -
2022 but specifically:

e Support development of infrastructure to enable growth
e Improving the quality of the environment, by including
infrastructure that supports people to walk and cycle

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS

Regulation 59 (1) of the Community Infrastructure Levy Regulations 2010
(as amended) require a charging authority to apply CIL to funding the
provision, improvement, replacement, operation or maintenance of
infrastructure to support the development of its area. It may also, under
Regulation 59 (3) support infrastructure outside its area where to do so
would support the development of its area.

Page 5 of 10



7.2

7.3

7.4

8.1

10.

Passing CIL to another person for that person to apply to funding the
provision, improvement, replace, operation and maintenance of
infrastructure is also permitted under Regulation 59 (4).

Section 216 (2) of the Planning Act 2008 as amended by Regulation 63
of the Community Infrastructure Regulations 2010 (as amended) stated
that infrastructure” includes [and is therefore not limited to]:

(a) roads and other transport facilities,

(b) flood defences,

(c) schools and other educational facilities,

(d) medical facilities,

(e) sporting and recreational facilities,

(f) open spaces

The levy may not be used to fund affordable housing.
REASONS FOR THE RECOMMENDED DECISIONS

This proposal is considered to have submitted a detailed project |,
including details of funding (including match funding where necessary)
and is recommended to receive CIL funding for the following reasons:

A detailed project has been provided.

Evidence of match funding has been provided.

KPC does not have a formal crossing between the historic core and New
Town .

The HLP2036 identifies growth of approximately 85 new dwellings

LIST OF APPENDICES INCLUDED

Appendix 1 — Plans for a Pedestrian Crossing.

BACKGROUND PAPERS

Section 216 of Planning Act 2008
http://www.leqgislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2008/29/section/216
Huntingdonshire Infrastructure Delivery Plan
http://www.huntingdonshire.gov.uk/media/2694/infrastructure-delivery-
plan.pdf

Huntingdonshire Infrastructure Delivery Plan — Infrastructure Schedule
http://www.huntingdonshire.gov.uk/media/2693/infrastructure-
schedule.pdf

Huntingdonshire Infrastructure Delivery Plan Addendum
http://www.huntingdonshire.gov.uk/media/2861/infrastructure-delivery-
plan-addendum.pdf

Page 6 of 10


http://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2008/29/section/216
http://www.huntingdonshire.gov.uk/media/2694/infrastructure-delivery-plan.pdf
http://www.huntingdonshire.gov.uk/media/2694/infrastructure-delivery-plan.pdf
http://www.huntingdonshire.gov.uk/media/2693/infrastructure-schedule.pdf
http://www.huntingdonshire.gov.uk/media/2693/infrastructure-schedule.pdf
http://www.huntingdonshire.gov.uk/media/2861/infrastructure-delivery-plan-addendum.pdf
http://www.huntingdonshire.gov.uk/media/2861/infrastructure-delivery-plan-addendum.pdf

CONTACT OFFICER
Name/Job Title: Clara Kerr (Service Manager — Growth)

Tel No: 01480 388430
Email: clara.kerr@huntingdonshire.gov.uk

Page 7 of 10



This page is intentionally left blank



g
T \INY/
%
.
R

EXISTING VILLAGE BOUNDARY
TO BE RELOCATED BY THE
PARISH COUNCIL

EXISTING BUS

STOP OR FLAG TO
BE REPOSITIONED

EXISTING BUS STOP
or FLAG TO BE
REPOSITIONED

TOLLFILED

EXISTING SIGN TO BE /

REPOSITIONED

:-U = RO AD
— - B645 T.HRAPSTON -_ I
- EXISTING GRASS VERGE TO BE
I i REMOVED AND CONSTRUCTED TO
FORM PART OF THE FOOTWAY
=il o _
b Y
0 L EXISTING ROAD LAYOUT
SCALE 1:200@A0
|8 ] PROPOSED NEW BUS
NEW | m—
ZEBRA ﬁ
CROSSING _ , )
AHEAD -
e — —_— il ROAD._ —_ N e = o
— — 645 THRAPSTON ™ --
SRR _— [PROPOSED LOCATION

FOR THE RE-LOCATED
BUS STOP or FLAG

R

SCALE 1:200@A0

| PROPOSED GENERAL ARRANGEMENT

EXISTING FOOTWAY
TO BE RESURFACED

PROPOSED FOOTWAY
EXTENSION,1.8 m WIDE

TOLLFILED

NEW
ZEBRA
CROSSING
AHEAD

Notes

NOTES:

1. DO NOT SCALE FROM THIS
DRAWING.

2. ALL MEASUREMENTS ARE IN
METRES UNLESS STATED
OTHERWISE.

3. THIS DRAWING IS FOR
CONSULTATION ONLY

KEY:
A4 PROPOSED SIGN
EXISTING SIGN

= PROPOSED ROAD
=== MARKING

EXISTING ROAD
MARKING

=  PROPOSED KERBLINE

PROPOSED
CARRIAGEWAY
RESURFACING
(PSV 68+ MIN)

PROPOSED FOOTWAY
CONSTRUCTION

PROPOSED FOOTWAY
RESURFACING

[6] EXISTING GULLY

PROPOSED GULLY

<L\

PROPOSED GENERAL ARRANGEMENT
SCALE 1:100@A0

170420 A PRELIM DESIGN

gagh Cambridgeshire
X County Council

“B645 THRAPSTON ROAD
KIMBOLTON
PFHI 19-20
- PROPOSED
HUMPED ZEBRA CROSSING
VARIES@A0| CM KL 17.04.2020

Basid upon Cledmance Survey material with the permission of the contraller of Her Mijesny's
Stotionery Office. Unnuthorised reproduction infringes copyright and moy lead o prosecution.
e Croven Copynght ond datnbose rights (2008) Ordoonee Survey 1OOG23205

Orawing
n

PFHI 19/20-0100-001




This page is intentionally left blank



	Agenda
	2 COMMUNITY INFRASTRUCTURE LEVY SPEND - KIMBOLTON
	Appendix 1


